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The Assembly County Government .and Regional Authorities Committee
will conduct a public hearing on May 3, 1988 at 10:00 a.m. in Atlantic City,
in the first floor auditorium of. the Atlantic County Administration Building,
1333 Atlantic Avenue at Tennessee Avenue.

The subject of the hearing will be Regional Authorities. Special attention
will be given to membership qualifications and. the issue of appointment or
election of members of Regional Authorities. The compliance of Regional
Authorities with the Open, Public Meetings Act and with the Local Public

" Contracts Law will also be examined.
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ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN E. ROONEY (Chairman): This is the
Assembly County Government and Regional Authorities Committee.
My name is .John Rooney. I am the Chairman. The Vice Chairman
is Jack Hendrickson. Edward Kline is also the Chairman of the
Municipal Government Committee, and serves on this Committee,
as I do on the Municipal Government Committee. So it makes it
very good for wus to share ideas, and also some of the
legislation. We are expecting Assemblyman George Hudak. He is
coming down from Linden. I may have passed him on the highway,
as one of the State troopers told me I was going a little bit
too fast. I was a little bit late myself. Assemblyman Duch
will not be able to make this particular hearing today.

We have had one hearing before this Committee already
at Bérgen,County Community College in Bergen County, and will
probably have at least one more, probably in Trenton. We were
hoping to hold one in Union County, but we ran into some
problems there. .

The main purpose of this hearing is to 1look at
regiondl authorities to see where there may be some problems,
and to maybe find some solutions to these problems to get
fuller accountability. I think we have all 1looked at the
independent authorities recently in the headlines of our
newspapers. I think if we went a little below the surface, we
probably could see a lot more headlines on regional
authorities. We want to prevent that. We want to make sure
that these authorities are accountable and—responsible to the
public and to the hunicipalities, counties, and the State
government which they serve.

So, that is the purpose of these hearings, and with
that I am going to turn the hearing over to my Vice Chairman,
Jack Hendrickson, for any comments.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Well, John, I think you have
said it all. It is not only the headlines, but over the years
there seems to have been a lot of problems with the



authorities. I agree with the Chairman that it is time we have
some input legislatively to the authorities. Whom better could
we possibly have than the  authorities themselves. and the
concerned -"people -- the nuts and balts, if you will, of the
authorities-here in the State of New'Jersey:. -

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Thank you, Jack. Assemblyman
Kline?

ASSEMBLYMAN KLINE: I would just 1like to say good
morning to everyone. It is a pleasure to be here. I would
like to welcome the entire Committee to Atlantic County. I
think every area in the State of New je;sey needs to address
and —— I don't want to say "take a look at," but modernize the
authorities. I think, as you said, as the newspapers have
stated recently on independent authorities, we need a second
look more to modernizing, updating, bringing them into the new
times, with a better quality of operations. I think today will
be something good for regional authorities, and I am looking
forward to the testimony. .

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Thank you, Assemblyman. " One of
the things I would like to do first is read into the record the
ending of our last Committee hearing. We read this into the
record at that time, and we would 1like to start off this
hearing with it. It is the State of New Jersey Commission of
Investigation's 1letter. This 1is their statement for the
Assembly County Government and Regional Authorities Committee
on the purpose that we stated earlier:

"The State Commission -of Investigation conducted an
investigation of such authorities which concluded with a public
hearing in July of 1982, and a subsequent report, with
recommendations to the Governor and the Legislature. At that
time, several bills were pending in the Legislature to empower
the State to control project financing by authorities and to
‘monitor their internal financing conduct. Due in part to th-
Commission's recommendations for enactment of this critically



important reform legislation, the proposal became law within a
year. - However, - the Commission proposed -other'  reforms  which
were overlooked, but ‘which warrant enactment." . - SRS

The point of bringing this in at this time is the fact
that this has been since 1982 -- the enactment -- and did not
occur to these other pieces of legislation that were proposed.
That is the purpose of this Committee, to take another look at
that situation and develop legislation. I will go on with the
letter:

“"The notice of this hearing indicated that much
concern still exists about the qualifications and conduct of
authority members. The Commission's recommendations in 1982
included a number that targeted the political bias, cronyism,
and deplorable 1lack of technical knowledge among authority
members regarding the complex financial and operatidnal
problems of their facilities. 1In order to assure that basic
decisions of these authorities were founded on both integrity
and expertise, the Commission urged then -- and reiterates here
-- several proposals that should be implemented. These include:

"A Code of Ethics: A model code of ethics should be
compiled by the State Division of Local Government Services to
which all authority members and officers must subscribe under
penalties for noncompliance, including fine, suspensions, and
dismissals.

"Technical and Professional Training: Provision
should be made by the Division for technical assistance and
training of appropriate authority members and administrative
and operational staff executives 1in connection with new
statutory requirements for uniform accounting and financial
reporting, as well as with related existing laws such as the
Local Public Contracts Act.

"Membership Composition: The Commission recommends
that any authotity‘s membership be required to 1include an
accredited engineer and at least one other member who is: 1)



a lawyer with an acknowledged professional background in
governmental, corporate, or bond law, or 2) ~a- fully qualified
representative of the -financial community, or 3) an individual
with proven: academic ‘credentials and experience 1in- business
administration.  Most important, no %ocal or-county: governing
body should appoint its own members to an authority, and no
political party should have a majority of more than one vote on
such agencies.

"Financial Disclosure: The Commission recommends that
all authority members submit personal financial disclosures
d: igned to prevent conflicts of interest at a time and in a
form prescribed by the Division and be subject to mandatory
fines of a substantial nature against both the affected member
and the authority itself for noncompliance."

Just for the press, we will get some copies made up
for you.

"Mandate Employment Qualifications: Minimal, but
nonetheless exacting qualifications should be mandated by the
Division for appointment of executive directors or others with
similar responsibilities for overall administrative supervision
of an authority plant. A college education, with an emphasis
on business administration or engineering, should be necessary,
as well as a specified amount of previous working experience in
sewerage and/or utility operations. A proven career background
with a facility should be acceptable as an alternative to the
requirement for a specialized educational background. '

"Prequalify Chemical Vendors: The Division should
establish a 1list of prequalified vendors of chemicals deemed
essential for the adequate operation of treatment and
purification facilities. The Division should establish
training seminars for authority pufchasing agents, to assist
them 1in determining the actual effectiveness of chemicals
currently being marketed for wastewater treatment.



"Almost six years ago, the Commission made the
following critique of the lack of qualifications.for .membership
and the low.standards of conduct  that -prevailed for most county
and local utility authorities: S _

-"FThe - Commission was appalled® by public hearing
testimony that demonstrated the  inferior quality of
appointments by certain local or county governmental entities
to these authorities these entities created. The hearings
demonstrated that an appointive process based too often on
political connections, rather than on merit, generated sorely
inadequate upper level policy guidance, ineffective managerial
controls, and blind reliance on often incompetent staff. The
testimony also confirmed that the absence of any requirement
for public accountability shielded misconduct that some
authority members participated in at worst, or closed their
eyes to at best.

“While there has been some improvement since then, the
Commission believes that its critique remains applicable to
many authorities. Indeed, the agenda suggested by your
Committee's ‘hearing notice -supports .our: concern. The
Commission therefore hopes that this hearing will generate
renewed efforts to further protect the public from misconduct
by authorities, by enacting more rigid requirements than
presently exist, for open, honest, and professionally
intelligent operation of such entities.”

That is the SCI letter that was sent to the Committee
last time. Mr. Morley -- James Morley, Executive Director of
the SCI -- apologized that he hasn't been able to make these
hearings. . We will have our final hearing in Trenton, and we
will be following up on this. ' _

My background, also as a former authority member,
confirms many of the things that have been said here. I have
seen this. I tried to change it from the inside at the Bergen
County Utilities Authority, and was unable to do it, in most



cases. Some things I _did get through; others, I couldn't.
What we intend to do is-change some of those - :things now, and
establish. those standards. - =

We also have some notes from the League of Women
Voters. I hope they will be here today sometime. This 1is
their project for this year. They are looking at independent
and regional authorities. One of the things they provided was
that, in December, 1985, there were 218 1locally created
authorities with a capital debt of $4,116,922,000, reflecting
outstanding bonds, notes, loans, and mortgages. That is a lot
of money -- four billion dollars.

There are some additional questions we will bring up.
I hope the League will come. If they don't, I have the
questions here. I am going to be involved in some panels they
are running up in the northeastern section where I reign from.

Does anyone else have any comments at this time?

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: No.

ASSEMBLYMAN KLINE: I don't.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Assemblyman Hudak has arrived.
You obviously had a little trouble getting down here this
morning, Assemblyman. It's a long drive.

ASSEMBLYMAN HUDAK: Well, time-wise--

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Time-wise, 1it's very long. Is
there any comment from Assemblyman Hudak?

ASSEMBLYMAN HUDAK: No, not at this time.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Okay, thank you. I believe DCA
is here to testify. Would you 1like to come up to the
microphone at this time and give your testimony? Basically,
the SCI letter does bring in DCA. There are a lot of things
they are asking DCA to do to provide us with sample legislation
—- model legislation -- that we are looking for. So, we would
like to have you cooperate with the Committee and develop that
legislation.



I probably should have mentioned earlier, Walter
Kennedy is our  legislative aide from-OLS. - Walter has had much
experience-.in county government and municipal government.
Walter has been: working with us. developing :a ‘lot of -this
legislation. = I ~weould  also 1like ::to. introduce Rosanne
Persichilli from the Republican Majority Staff, and my aide is
Suzi Chichester, from my legislative office staff. Does anyone
else have any introductions they want to make?

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: I have my unpaid aide, my
wife, out there. (laughter) She is volunteering. )

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I'm glad to see you again back in
the swing of things, now that you are almost recuperated from
your recent surgery. We missed you down at the sessions in
Trenton.
MRS. HENDRICKSON: I missed all of you, too. A
_ _ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: That's nice of you. Thank
you. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: So, at this time, DCA, would you
like to come forward and introduce -yourself? Up at the
microphone, please. We won't be able to hear you from there.
JOSEPH A. VALENTI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My
name 1is Joseph Valenti. I am Chief of the Bureau of Local
Management Services, which is within the Division of Local
Government Services. As Chief of the Bureau of Local
Management Services, one of our responsibilities -- "of the
Bureau itself —- 1is to assist the- local contracting units in
New Jersey, not in compliance with the Local Public Contracts
Law, but in the administration of the law. With me today is
Mr. Donald Hubschman, who is Chief of the Bureau of Authority
Regulation. So, it is sort of a dual role here, with Donald
and his staff being responsible for the financing end of the
authorities. The creation of the SCI report created the
establishment of the Bureau of Authority Regulation.™



,.

I would just like to make some brief comments as far
as the overall application:of the Local: Publie Contracts Law is
concerned, ' .any questions. you may have concerning purchasing
specifically, -the application perhaps:"to authorities, and your
comments concerning the purchase of the chemicals..

Evidently, the SCI report, from what I remember when
it was first published, indicated some confusion on the part of
local authorities, their ‘“purchasing officials,"” and the
purchase of such chemicals. Any questions concerning budgets,
bonding capacities, and things 1like that, I think Donald would
perhaps be better able to field.

As far as the Local Public Contracts Law is concerned,
the modern version as we know it has been around since about
1971. Prior to that time, we actually had two separate laws.
We had one for counties and one for municipalities. 1In 1971,
we had a major revision to the two separate laws. They were
really consolidated. In 1972, there was a court case
concerning a MUA in Middlesex County and a contractor. To make
a long story short, it came down to the fact that the MUA took
the position that it did not have to comply with the Local
Public Contracts Law because it was not a contracting unit as
defined by the iw at that time. The court decision was
reported -- it is a reported case —— and at that time the court
decided that they, indeed, were subject to the application of
the Local Public Contracts Law. ‘ '

In 1976, pursuant to a law which was signed by the
Governor at that time -- a 1975 law -- the authorities were
added to the 1list of, at that time, definable contracting
units. There is a laundry 1list of 1local entities that are
governed by the Local Public Contracts Law. It's
municipalities, counties, and the word "authorities" was added
to the definition. So, from 1976, the Local Public Contr:cts
Law does include the term "authorities" in the contracts law.



The overall application of the law: Basically, it is
& law that perhaps :was 'passed for 2% of the population, but
nevertheless it is  a law. that applies to -the: local purchasing
activities of those:deéfinable units other than State agencies.
Today, we have—-—- Starting in 1979, we had the School Contracts
Law passed for public schools. County colleges have their own
contracts law. State agencies are naturally governed by
Chapter 52. We have State colleges now with their own
contracts law. So it basically comes down to authorities,
municipalities, counties, and those 1local aQencies that are
definable in the law as a contracting agent.

The law itself has-- Well, since 1971 the 1law has
increased in exceptions two formal bidding practices, but major
amendments to the law in 1971, and agéin' in 1976, indicated
that even though certain services and material were exempt from:
public bidding, it still required the solicitation of informal
quotes. It is a law that requires-- Up until recently, it
said that anything over $7500, unless it was specifically
- exempt from public bidding, had to go out for public bidding.
Today -- in the last two years —— we are now on what they call
the "CPI" -- the Consumer Price Index, and every odd numbered
year in July the Governor, through the cooperation of the State
Treasurer, will set the dollar amount at which formal public
bidding will take place. It could go down, but it will never
go down below $7500, and naturally it can go up. |

The State of New Jersey is required to notify local
contracting units of the change as to what that dollar amount
would be. It has been set twice, and it has gone up 1in
increments of about $300 each time that it has been set. July,
1989, will be the next time it will be up for debate as to the
dollar amount of the purchasing limit.

As I said, it is a law that basically started off with
the premise that most things have to be bid. There is an
exemption section in the Local Public Contracts Law that

T



stipulates about 22 items that are exempt from formal bidding.

However, .- there: 1s - another provision~ in- the ' law that

specifically indicates that, while you may not have to: solicit

formal “bids, that every effort should 'be made to-get informal.
quotations .= o o T WA At Do Teh

Now, what does that mean? As far as informal
quotations, it means more than one. It seems to be an
unofficial rule here in New Jersey if you talk to some of the
purchasing agents, and it is a good practice to at least try to
get three —-- a tie breaker; in a sense, -a rubber match. Do
they have to get three? No. '3 they have to get more than
one? No. If they only get .2 and they are satisfied with
that quote, fine. If they <e an attempt and they get no
quotes, then it is up to them to try to get a vendor as best
they can. :

What does this mean basically on informal quotes, or
even on a formal bid? What we recommend to most contracting
units is that they are a bidder unto themselves. If they are
searching the markets and doing their own homework, they should
come up with their own estimates as to what a particular job or
material will cost them. So that way if they get in only one
bid, they can make a value determination as to whethef that bid
is too high or too low.

As far as authorities-- I would say that up until the
SCI report and my employment with the State and with the
Division-- I would say in the mid-'70s, we received very few

phone calls from authorities. After the report, we made every
effort whenever we sent out anything-—- Now that they were
considered a contracting unit, whenever we sent anything out to
"the municipalities or counties, executive directors were
receiving the same mail. When amendments to the law were made,
we were sending copies of the amendments to the law. We tried,
as much as possSible, to keep the local contracting units up to
date with page amendments to the law, so that they have as much
current information as possible. T |
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Training: I can only give you the background. I
don't Kknow 'exactly: what:training courses are available to the
authorities, - However, I do know that in: guest.. lecturing for
Rutgers University, they have a Continuing Education Division
that has courses for tax collectors, for finance officers, for
purchasing agents, and for municipal clerks. In the area of
purchasing, when I have guest lectured, you will have attending
those sessions perhaps someone from the authority, someone from
the staff of the financial section of the authority, or what
have you. To the best of my knowledge, there is no specific
training course only for authorities, whether that be regional
or independent authorities -- meaning independent on the local
level -- although they are available to them. The Pufchasing
Association, which I am more familiar with, definitely has
membership from authorities. They do attend the two seminars a
year. You will have representation from authorities. However,
I don't think you have the representation that you have with
counties and municipalities in attendance. If you have maybe
30 people ‘who represent authorities at these wvarious
" conferences, that may be 20" too many, but they are not there in
the same numbers as their counterparts are for the counties and
municipalities. ‘ _ |

The law is basically a law of one-year contracts.
Again, there 1is a specific provision in the 1law that talks
about multi-year contracts. There is a concern that unless
there is a specific exemption that says it 1is a two-year
contract, 1it's a three—year contract, it's a five-year
contract, the law specifically states that all contracts are
for one year duration. '

You have some concern for the chemicals -- the fact of
getting more than a one-year contract for chemicals. The only
concern the Division has on any request to have more multi- year
contracts, is the concern that it can create favoritism and a
monopolistic relationship. I don't think it has come to my
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attention that there is a difficult situation in going for more
than a one-year contract -- that a one-year- centract presents
any problem. for- chemical purchases.:..The: question here as far
as not knowing what you:are purchasing, as far .as whether it be
chemicals or pencils is, there needs to be an administrative
person who 1is watching exactly what is needed, when it is
needed, 1is it being purchased, 1is it the quality that was
speced out, and so forth.

I know on the local government level -- municipalities
—-— sometimes it comes to our attention that if someone 1is not
really accepting delivery of goods, or a service, or can attest
to the fact that a service has been performed, a bill can be
submitted to a governing body and paid, without the checks and
balances being in place. It has occurred. You say, "Well, how
can it occur?" You just assume that if a bill is presented by
a vendor, the vendor has performed, but there is a need for
checks and balances. Local contracting units, the ones that
have the checks and balances in place, make sure that the
persbn who is processing the purchase order is different than
the person who is recéiving notification of the performance of
service, or the actual receipt of the goods. ' '

Coopérative purchasing: This is an area that has
expanded. It is both on a State level and also on the local
level. 1In 1980, a law was enacted that allowed for local units
of government to join together for ordinances and resolutions

for the benefit of having their own mini -- on a local level -—-
cooperative purchasing. Since 1981, the Division of Local
Government Services must register these various programs. We

have approximately, in the process, 24 lead agencies throughout
the State of New Jersey. Some are counties, and they do the
purchasing for the entities within a county. Not all of them
are local wunits of government. Some of then are fire
districts; some of them are county colleges. In Burlington
County, they have a Bridge Commission. I think those 24 to 26
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cooperative purchasing wunits represent about 500 different
units of ‘local government. Some are regional MUAs —-- or rather
sewerage authorities. - Municipal wutilities authorities do
belong to  this. "It is.a way of:! 1) . Cutting down.on expenses;
2y ~buying 'in bulkK "so ‘that it cuts down: on the cost; and 3)
usually your 1lead agencies are those which have more
experienced purchasing staff, so that a less fortunate entity
has the benefit of an experienced person doing the purchasing.

As far as chemicals, I was unable to check on whether
some of the authorities that belong to some of these
cooperative purchasing programs were requesting the lead agency
for the purchases of chemicals. I know the State of New
Jersey, through the Division of Purchase and Property, has a
cooperative purchasing program which allows local contracting
units to purchaée off of their State contracts. I think Mr.
Kennedy'CAn attest to the fact that over the last several years
that has expanded from just counties and municipalities to fire
districts, nonprofit associations, and what have you. So,
there is a broader range of entities that can take advantage of
State contracts. ' ’ ' 7

The State -- the Division of Purchase and Property --—
also has specification writers who spec out for the State its
needs. In doing so, they also make available to local units of
government those specifications for when théy go out to bid.
It is not a mandatory program. All local units do not have to
participate. Many of them do call to find out if they can beat
the price locally. If it would save them money
administratively, they will go ahead and use a State contract.
I have personally seen, as I said, the State contracts
expanded. The State sometimes will even go out and bid
something on behalf of enough local units if there is a
request. Even if the State of New Jersey doesn't need it for
its own agencies, they will do it on behalf of the local units,
if enough of them request such services.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: On the cooperative purchasing,
this-is "'something that I have always looked at.: ‘When:I was a
Commissioner ‘at. Bergen County, I.recommended it many times. It
seemed. there was an: absolute aversion to..it there, I don't "know
why. Is there anything we can do to audit -- through DCA --
the purchases that exceed $7500, to find out 1if these
authorities are going out and buying items at higher than the
cooperative purchasing agreement, to somehow bring them into
mandatory purchasing?

MR. VALENTI: I don't know if anything can be done
through DCA or any State agency. Out of the 24 to 26, I would
say that in the beginning many local wunits perhaps were
reluctant to use-— Let's say the County of Burlington was the
lead agency. They still might decide that they could beat the
price on their own bid or an informal quote. I don't know if
we really want to take that flexibility away, as far as paying
higher prices. Sometimes a State contract will definitely be
lower in price, but if it is a service contract, and depending
upon where the vendor 1is located, sometimes when you are an
authority and you havé'maybe a particular type 6f machinery\or-
service contracts that are needed, it's the old adage, "You pay
a little less, but you don't get the service." So, in weighing
any kind of price criteria, there are other things that go into
the award to the lowest responsible bidder.

Cooperative purchasing can be viewed and probably
utilized perhaps a little bit better if it is kept "small," in
the sense that -- from a geographical point of view. As far as
the initiative of saying, "How do we value the bid versus our
own bid?" bidding is kind of funny. You get a price one day,
and you have so many days in which to award a contract. If you
haven't done your own homework and you have this contract that
is a cooperative purchasing agreement, do you go with it? Do
you have the time to really do your own evaluation? If it is
still a bid situation, and it is so many days before you have
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to bid again, you could lose the advantage of the. cooperative
contract, plus you have now lost the advantage of -having to-go
out::under - your own.:bid. -~ It takes time. I. mean, the law
specifically .requires so many days  in @ which . you.' have : to
advertise. " You can"t receive bids before that time.:  This is
where I think any contracting unit, whether it be an authority
or a specific local unit of government-— You should not just
wait on the bids coming in. You should be doing your own
homework. Someone should be doing your own homework, whether
it be an -engineer, whether it be the purchasing lagent, the
finance person in charge, whomever, to try to get your own
sense of what it is, as far as a price on the project, or the
service, or the material.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I was concerned with something
tangible, not service contracts. I Kknow service contracts. An
automobile that may run anywhere between $10,000 and $15,000,
especially if you even add up the options-- I have seen that
the BCUA purchased one that was much higher>thanvthe one on the
State purchasing contract. They claim they wanted 1local
service. You can get local warranty service from anyone.
Anything additional, you can go to a local service station and
pay for it. /

MR. VALENTI: The way the State contract works on
cooperative purchasing-- It is like a camera-ready copy. What
you see is what you get. Neither the vendor nor the local unit
of government can in any way alter that contract. It happens
from time to time. The State of New Jersey —-— the Division of
Purchase and Property -- 1is one of the contractees to the
contract. If there is a change to the contract, it must ‘come
about between the two parties involved, which are the vendor
and the State. In many cases, a vendor will figure, "Well, I

am closer to this town." So what I will do is say, "Don't
worry about the price that is on the State contract. I'11
charge you differently." That creates all kinds of problems
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for the State, because they would like to have the advantage of
the lower price as well. I s E TR L RO e TS P

.i.=You -also-have situations. where:..you may get a vendor
who tries - to - product substitute: ﬁsual‘ly.-‘-. the . way - the
cooperative purchasing werks for the State, and our own advice
to local units of government, is to make sure that they can use
the State contract as they see it -- the terms and conditions.
Some of these terms also involve payment and how the payment
can be made. The State is run a little bit differently as far
as their ability to pay a bill wversus 1local units of
government, and that can be a conflict as =211. So not always
will you find a State contract that, wh:le it may be best
suited for the municipality or county or authority as far as
the item is concerned, it is just that the terms and conditions
of some of the State contracts are incongruent with State law.
One particular area is the multi-year provision. Many State
.contracts can go five or seven years out. For local units of
government that is the exception rather than the rule, to have
that long of a multi-year venture.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Another item I .remember as a
local official was when we got into fire apparatus equipment,
where the fire company would schedule .1t the delivery of
certain items, but never exceeded the $4500, or $2500, or
whatever it was. At the end of the year you totaled it up, and
it was well in excess of that. And I believe some of the
authorities are doing it. In chemicals, they might order a
month's supply, a two—-month supply, but overall they could have
done it on an annual basis and put it out to public bid. Are
there any provisions DCA is looking at? '

MR. VALENTI: Yes. Thank you for reminding me. That
was one of the pillars in the contracts law. The law is based
on aggregation. Without aggregation, everything would be done
on a piecemeal basis. Naturally, if it was over $8400, which
the bid limit is now, you would say, "Well, I have to go out to
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bid," but if it is the kind of thing where you are ordering
$3000 now,.:$2000- next :month, and $4000 the month after, it is
like the three:little pigs. You - know, -no: one.sees anything.
They say,="Well, .I didn't exceed the bid limit,": and the next
guy says, "Well, I didn't exceed the bid limit:* -But, if -there
is someone centrally watching all these individual purchases,
if there is an aggregation, well, yes, there is a violation of
the 1law. But, taking that aside, there 1is also the
inconvenience of three different departments now ‘filling out
purchase orders for 1like items. That's number one. That is
probably a waste of their time. Number two, there is also the
concern that small purchases will cost you more. For small
deliveries and for small purchases, you are going to pay a good
price. There 1is also concern for storage, where it is
delivered, who is using it, how it is controlled.

So our recommendation is that in addition to the law
that says that in the aggregation you should be looking at a
total year's worth of purchases-— It doesn't say a calendar
year; it says a fiscal year. But for local municipalities here
in New JerSeyé— ‘I think, Donald, the authorities are on a
different cycle, correct? (inaudible response from Mr.
Hubschman) They are on a different cycle, so now we have a
different cycle for the authérity. But basically, the term
"aggregation" would apply. When you are looking down the road
for a whole year, you should be thinking of this in the
aggregation, not what you are ordering on a monthly basis, or
on a quarterly basis, but what the overall price Iis.
Hopefully, you are going to get the benefit of doubt when you
do order on bulk purchasing, number one. Number two, you will
be getting a clean sweep of just having perhaps one purchase
order. Even if you don't accept delivery, even if it 1is a
piecemeal delivery, at least you ordered it at one time, and
then you accept delivery as just. '
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Perhaps most important, it gives a sense of control
over what the purchases have been.  Now, you can't do this on a
year-to-year -basis.  You:'- have to have historical records.
- Someone has to go back in time == at least three years is what
we ~recommend:: -~ and :take ‘a-look at, '“What-have we -ordered in
the past? Is there a new project coming on-line? Are we
expanding our water system?" or whatever it may be. There has
to be game planning here, because purchasing cannot look into a
crystal ball. Okay? There have to be people in-house who can
see what's coming.

As far as certain chemicals. "What did we order last
year? What did we order the year be :re?" At a minimum, based
on historical records, see what is needed for the coming year,
and then put it into your "game plan," as far as the purchasing
is concerned. But that is an important ingredient in the law,
one where people say, "Well, we never know what we are going to

need." Yes, it is difficult, there is no doubt about it. I
would say the first year of any new project, whether it be for
chemicals or for a new piece of equipment -- you know, if it is

on a regular basis -- you are probably using a little
guesstimation in that sense. But if it is going to be ongoing
after that time, then these records should be maintained.
Purchase orders should be reviewed. They should be kept
anyway. They are important public documents anyhow. And then
someone, when it comes close to preparing the budget again,
should take a 1look at this, talk to the wvarious department
heads, and say, "Well, here is what we did last year. Do you
think the same, less, or what have you. We have a new project
coming on-line. Are we going to need more of this particular
chemical?"

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Anyone else?

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Yes. Just to back up a
little bit, if I understood you correctly, you were talking
about municipalities and authorities, on some contracts vendors
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being paid. As a mayor, we always had a certification to the
council:member . who was: In: charge of ~that-department, that he
had received -the quality of the product and/or. that' the labor
had been received -=:value received. . Is that not: by law?

MR. VALENTI: No. There is a certification-- Most
towns, by practice or tradition, have on the, I guess you would
say the receiving copy--

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON:. The wvoucher.

MR. VALENTI: The voucher, okay -- the voucher and the
receiving copy. A voucher will come back, and hopefully the
claimant, the vendor, will sign saying -- attesting that he has
provided the service performed, or what have you. Then, in
some forms of government, there may be a council person in
charge of that department who will sign off. We suggest very
strongly that a person who has actually observed the
performance, or the receipt of the material -- either one,
whether it be a supervisor or an actual department head --
actually sign off that they have seen this occur, or have had
the performance viewed. Then that goes to the finance
" department. If you are a municipality, it goes to a clerk who
puts the bill on the agenda, and the bill is paid. Sometimes
that is not the case. Sometimes we have people removed from
the actual performance signing off, and they assume it has been
done. They are far and in-between, but what I am saying is,
“without the proper checks and balances in place, bills can get
paid without those—- | '

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: It sounds 1like 1it's loose,
for public money.

MR. VALENTI: I would say that as far as the
certification of funds-- See, this is the other part. As a
mayor, you would be very concerned with this. Your finance
officer has to certify to the governing hody in general that
the funds are availablé. I don't think that is as much of a
problem as to ensure that the services are being performed.

.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: I agree.
.. .-+ MR. -VALENTI:.: Then you.-have it both: .ways. You have
the money,-making sure that the actual:funds -are .available for
payment, and- also to-make sure that-the services have been
performed. - : T .

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Is it flagrant enough to
recommend a legislative remedy?

MR. VALENTI: The Division of Local--

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: If anything comes out of
what we are doing here.

MR. VALENTI: Right. The Division of Local Government
Services, through a regulation -- a directive -- requires all
municipalities to have a purchase order encumbrance system.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: A purchase order voucher
system for just purchases, yes.

MR. VALENTI: A purchase order-- Well, it's a voucher.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Oh, yeah. ’

MR. VALENTI: We have actually put out examples. Of
course, towns do differently. Some towns have nine copies;
other towns have three copies. L _ .

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Depending on the size, yeah,
I understand.

MR. VALENTI: So, we don't get involved in the 1local

prerogative. What we do recommend is-— On our form we
recommend that on the sign-off copy it attests to someone
actually receiving that. Most towns that I know of-— I cannot
attest for authorities, but I know that most towns that I deal
with -- the purchasing agents I know -- in some way have
adopted -- if they had not been doing it already -- this kind

of a situation.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: If I may? Most of our 567
municipalities are small municipalities.

MR. VALENTI: Yes, they are.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: We are a small municipality
governed State. ' Many: of them do not have. purchasing agents.
MR. VALENTI: -No.. Well-— - b = e
-—...7 . ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: - It .goes through -a' township
committee form of government.

MR. VALENTI: Right, but usually what we have -- and
you have various combinations-- You may have-- I know of a
personnel officer/purchasing agent. Most purchasing in the

smaller towns is done through your various department heads,
who collectively will then filter up the information to the
finance officer. Most towns have what they call a finance
officer, or a treasurer, or a comptroller, so at least if it is
done on a separate basis, department by department, then it is
being filtered up.

But what I am saying is, and naturally there are
always the exceptions, but when something 1like this does
happen, you find that maybe the checks and balances were not
there on the lower level. As I said, we have recommended --
" not recommended, but through an accounting'directive—— ' There
were three. One specifically dealt “with an encumbrancing
operation, which said that you had to have a minimum purchasing
system that ensured that all funds were being encumbered,
certified by the finance officer, and that there was an
attestment to the fact that the services were rendered.

I think that without even saying that 1is a
requirement, if you have an encumbrance operation, in order to
pay the bill you have to certify that the job was performed.
You can lead a horse to water, but making it drink is something
else. It depends‘on how-- As you said as a mayor yourself,
you have smaller towns, larger towns; you have sophisticated
systems;.you have smaller systems. It is whatever on the 1local
level. Notwithstanding the fact that you have laws, but-the
situation and procedures that are, are to protect you in order
to make a payment, so that when it gets to the governing body,
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you can feel free that you are paying a bill for which services
have been rendered. : o

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: The encumbrance. system applies to
the regional authorities also, or it doesn't?
DONALD F. HUBSC CHMAN (speaking from audience):
No. In city and county (indiscernible) there is a recommended
encumbrance.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: We want legislation to mandate
that.

We are not going to be able to pick you up on the
recording, so why don't you come up?

MR. KENNEDY (Committee Aide): For the purpose of our
transcript, we can't pick you up.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yeah. Please identify yourself
for the hearing reporter.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Do you have any written
testimony you are going to give us today?

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: They gave us some last time -- at

the last hearing -- so we do have something on the record.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Oh, okay. All right, we'll
have something, okay. It's very interesting. You're very
knowledgeable.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Identify yourself, please.
MR. HUBSCHMAN: My name is Donald Hubschman. I am the
Acting Bureau Chief for the Bureau of Authority Regulation. I

have been in that position for the past seven months. I have
been with the Division for 11 years. Prior to that -- just by
way of background -- I served basically for the Director or the

Local Finance Board, as a representative whenever the State
"took over a municipality, beginning with the City of Camden
back in 1981, Weehawken, North Bergen, North Haledon. So, I
don't have a very long tenure with the authorities, but I can
see certain basic differences here.

22



Relative to this particular part, I would 1like to
comment that thereé is a difference, and I think there ought to
be a difference between .an authority and a municipality. There
exist today @uthorities :  which embrace fire- districts, and
should embrace really all- special ‘‘districts that have the
ability to tax. There is a big difference between that ability
to tax and the user charges. If we accept that the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants has been the
financial experts, what they have promulgated and put forth is
sort of serving to the entire nation, rather than to one
particular state or any one locality. I think it is a good
reference point.

They define in there an appropriation as being the
authority to spend. When you have the ability to tax, when you
are dealing with a municipality, a county, a district, that is
exactly what that appropriation represents, and no one can
spend more than that because of the public moneys that are
involved. It is a good law; it is a good ruling.

When you get into authorities, and having worked with
the municipalities, or ‘at the municipal level, where they. have
difficulties in varying municipalities, it is a restriction
that is difficult to work with, but it is necessary. With the
authorities, I think you would be imposing on them, if you put
the same kind of restriction, something that would make them
less than flexible. You may want to consider that there has to
be this distinction. You want more flexibility with any
authority, I believe, than what you want-—- Not 1less
accountability, but more flexibility to make decisions, because
frequently and historically, the evolvement near the budget
process that exists for government 1is there to protect the
taxpayer, even though it makes it a little bit more difficult
to operate.

Relative to the appropriation point, I just want to
say that there is a fine distinction. It is not presently in
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the law or in the regs. We treat an authority the same way, in
that they have to submit a.budget.. We go:~“through all the
motions, and. we add-& clause at the end of it == this is in the
existing regulations, 0r in the existing law -—— -that says you
can overexpend. ~That is something in there that needs to be
addressed.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Would you 1like to see that
corrected?

MR. - HUBSCHMAN: Certainly. I think when the Director
first assigned me to this, one of the--— We have a very small
authorized stafi the Bureau -- eight peovle. We have been
working with fouw:

ASSEMBL: HENDRICKSON: 1In DCA?

MR. HUBS. (AN: In the Bureau of Authority Regulation.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: But you are under DCA?

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Within DCA. So we have been working
with half a staff in there to start off with.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: May I just break in for a

minute, Mr. Chairman, through you? |
' ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yes. . o

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: How many authorities are you
regulating —- 218?

MR. HUBSCHMAN: The number-—- Somebody said 218. I
would say that that number sounds correct. I compiled a
listing when I first joined the Bureau, and classified them as
to utility authorities, sewerage authorities, parking
authorities, etc., down the list. The number 218 sounds
correct.

In addition to that, we have 180 fire districts, so
there 1is a total of approximately 400. We are currently
looking into trying to identify whether there are other special
taxing districts out there that also come underneath (sic) the
law.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: And you staff again is?

MR. HUBSCHMAN: There are four of us.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: The encumbrance system, though——

You're ~not - -‘recommending ' that: the . regional :authorities be
embraced—--. -7 AT 0 oo - T DU S
. MR.: HUBSCHMAN: : I. would not do thatw-for ah authority,
number one, because the encumbrance system assumes, or presumes
that you are using municipal or government accounting. And you
go a step further, in that you actually record your budget. A

private corporation-- An authority 1is generally, from an
accounting point of view, trying to be competitive, to bring in
the lowest price -- the best service, the lowest price, etc. —-——

and technically ought_to'be generating, in my view, a profit
for the future. If you restrict them in the same way that you
would restrict a municipality or a fire district or a county,
by saying, "You have to have an encumbrance system," which
seems to me to have gone to the extreme for the reasons I said
earlier, that the ability to tax and the raising of that public
money is sort of |unique, and that requires <certain
safeguards-- If they were to follow an encumbrance system,
that says, "When you - place a purchase order, you are going to
record, in ‘essence, your liability" -- not really a liability,
but the contingent 1liability -- and you do that when you
execute the purchase order. .

Now, if you gentlemen have been in private industry,
you know you don't do this in private industry. You wait until
title passes -- when the goods or services have been rendered.
So you have added another segment to the record keeping system,
and one that is cumbersome. Well, it can be addressed; it can
be handled. But I don't know that it is one that you want to
impose upon authorities, unless some benefit were going to be
derived from it. I don't know what that benefit would be today.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I tend to disagree, because I
have seen what happens at authorities, having lived with it for
five years. The encumbrance system, I think, would straighten
a lot of problems out, because I found at the particular one I
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served on, the purchases were made from all over the place.
They were: 'made: from:-the engineering department. -They were made
from the spec- department. They were made, a lot of times, from
everywhere™~ buf - the -.purchasing department. . The ~encumbrance
system means-that:: you: have to..'go and -get::a:'purchase:.order
before you can physically place an order. There are a lot of
safeguards in that itself. I think that saves a lot of money
by the fact that if you have to go to the purchasing department
to get a purchase order, you eliminate a lot of the things that
happen, such as the engineer being wined and dined by a
particular vendor, and then giving that particular vendor the
order without‘any benefit of public bid, or even a quote, if it
is under $7500. '

MR. HUBSCHMAN: With all due respect, why couldn't it
be addressed by simply -- within the local unit, within the
authority -- saying, "We have a purchasing agent who is
responsible, and he is the only individual authorized. We will
not recognize any of the commitments placed by anyone other
than the purchasing agent. Therefore, you better come through
the purchasing agent." I think what we do is-- '
| ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I think if you listened to what
we were saying in the SCI report, you have people at the top
who don't know what they-are doing, who are unqualified. You
have people who are brought in as purchasing agents who are
even unqualified. The engineer, in a lot of cases, figures, "I
am not going to rely on those —-— expletive deleted —— I will do
my own purchasing, do my own thing." Probably, in a practical
sense, maybe that is why the plants run, because they don't go
through that. But I think we have to start cleaning up some of
the loose ends here. There is a lot of accounting that is not
being done.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: I think you hit the nail on the head
earlier. When you started off, you used the word
"accountability." That is what's missing. That's missing
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whether it be on the municipal level, or whether it be on the
authority: level ~~-accountability ‘and what -that brings with it
—-- rather than simply regulation. -We can go -out and prescribe
all the regutations, and if the Legislature is willing, ‘it can
pass all-the 1laws, but who isAgoing to call the people into
account? When you say "accountability," what is the penalty
for not complying? I know I went to the City of Camden, and I
think this was a crime--— In 1981, it was on the brink of
bénkruptcy; 24 hours away from going into default on its bond
payment. Who was ever penalized for that? No one.

When I went to the City of Weehawken, which went down
the tubes -- and they have a little city -- for something like
$4 million, nobody ever suffered. I went up to North Bergen.
Who was penalized for that? No one. When people do not comply
with the laws -- and we have many laws on the books -- what is
their penalty? It comes back to nothing.

I think the key, rather than saying, “You must do
regulating," is accountability. That is more the key. Hauling
them in for an accounting and perhaps having fixed in the
Legislature, or by the Legislature, a penalty that
automatically applies. Nobody has to make the determination,
because nobody wants to be the bad guy. That is the way it
seems to me. I think if it read, "If you don't do this, you
will get a $100 a day fine," or $1000, or whatever it might be

in a given circumstance-— I think if there were a penalty that
was set like that, then they might pay more attention. Then I
think at the same time-- Someone mentioned the smaller

communities. You have to bear that in mind. You have, 6 small
authorities. You have fire districts, where they raise $36,000

d year, really conscientious people, but they don't know the

first thing about budgeting or accounting, and they don't even
know about the election laws.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Or bidding- laws.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Or the bidding laws, yes, sir. It is
a big educational program.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Having gone through that in my
two ~“terms as-mayor,~:I had to completely: educate-the . new fire
officers- every time they had their-elections, as-to what the
bidding law; .the budget law, etc. required us to do. "=

What about asset inventory. Are they required to do
asset inventory the same as our municipalities?

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Well, fundamentally, no, not the same,
more along the conventional lines deemed for private industry.
They have their property plant and equipment account, and they
have to maintain those accounts. They don't have separate
funds. Essentially, when you get into gover 1t accounting --
when I say that, again I am talking about the '.nicipalities ——
you have various funds which are separate ac :nting entities,
just as if you were running a distinct company unto itself.
So, you have your general operating fund, which really takes
care of your current revenues, and what is going to be your
current expenditures, or your appropriations. That is almost
by itself. Then you come over and you have your capital fund.
Any proceeds in there from the bond issues, for whatever the
assets are you are 'ching to purchase, are contained within that
fund. Of course, they eventually are liquidated. Then you go
over and you say-— Separate and distinct, not technically, you
find you have your fixed asset group of accounts, which keeps
track in there of the fixed assets and ought to maintain a
record of depreciation so that you know what the book value and
the remaining useful life of any of the assets are going to be.

Authorities do not operate that way. Authorities
operate much the way a private corporation does. If they
purchase a building, . it goes on the books and it is
depreciated. ThHey are required to depreciate their assets.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: One other item. I believe you
are the bonding cxpert, is that true?

MR. HUBSCHMAN: No, not really.

~
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: No, okay. On bonding
specifically-- - I don't think it -would: take .a. bonding expert,
but there -is- something-in the SCI report: that indicates  they
recommended there-be:a. prequalified list of:bonding companies.
I kind of..read:.into it:that. there would'be a‘'bidding procedure,
that we get some actual bidding for bonding. "The Commission
recommends that 1local authorities be required to adhere to
competitive public bid procedures laid down by the local bond
law, except that the State Local Government Services Division
may, at its discretion, permit an authority to negotiate the

sale of bonds." So, we're saying they really should bid the
bonding. I know we were paying atrocious rates -- 1-1/2%,
1-3/4% -- on major, major bond issues. Had we gone out for

public bid, those rates would have come down. In our case, we
were talking several millions of dollars that would have been
saved by the authority.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: That's relative to coming out with a
bond issue in there, and saying, "We are putting it up  for
public bid." The ability, however, under a given set of
circumstances, to negotiate, I think, is a feature you would
probably want to retain, because there are circumstances
whereby, number one, you could do better on a negotiation
basis, and may even do better relative to regular purchasing.
The matter came up before. I know from firsthand experience
working in the municipalities, that going to public bidding
does not assure the taxpayef of the lowest price. Many, many
times I know we could have bought items cheaper than what the
proposals were that were submitted by various vendors. A lot
of times you find this out after the fact. A contract is
already in existence. So public bidding in and of itself isn't
necessarily an answer to a good safeguard, unless used with
reason, with a certain amount of rationale and flexibility --
and we said, "Who are we going to put that flexibility in --
who are we going to trust it to?" But that, in and of itself,
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doesn't necessarily say you are going to get the best price.
The same thing as' with the bond situation. :

I- have -been: involved in some. of the bond. sales -in
Camderr,, Nerth Bergen, -etc: We review:all the project finances
coming before the Local Finance Board currently.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Including regional authorities?

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Including the authorities.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: It just strikes me that when
there 1is one bonding company selected, the percentage is
extremely high on who keeps the book and all the other nonsense
that goes with it.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: You sometimes have to wonder about the
so-called discount markdown or the underwriter's discount --—
how does that fluctuate so much? —- particularly when you look
‘at a large issue. One of the authorities came out with
something 1like $600 million a couple of months ago for an
authorized issue. They have the same straight rate. Nobody
stepped in and said, "Well, I'll give you a break on your
discount." . ‘ :

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I would just like to break away
for one minute. - I have just been reminded, and I Kknow that
Dick Squires is the Atlantic County Executive, and I would like
to introduce him. I also want to thank him for being our host.
today, and for giving us these wonderful facilities.
RICHARD E. SQUTIRE S (speaking from audience):
Well, let me just Say that we are quite proud of this county
office building and this room. We invite you any time you have
any need for a hearing to come back. We hope the
accommodations are comfortable, and also that you have a
successful hearing. I have been here for the last 15 or 20
minutes, and I could certainly hear that you are getting a lot
of good input.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: We would appreciate any
additional input that a County Executive could give. One of

30



‘the issues we are looking at is the membership of various
authorities.. As -County Executive, you have the power to
appoint people. -_There were questions by the SCIas to the
qualifications of those people. . .I understand from: Assemblyman
Kline that you have very qualified people on your boards. That
may not be true all over the State. If you have any input you
can give us regarding the membership of these boards, or their
activities-— My own county executive in Bergen County wants to
have veto power over the minutes of the regional authorities he
has. I don't know if that is to your liking or not.

MR. SQUIRES: Well, we had veto power until--—

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Could you come up and speak at
the microphone, because we are being recorded?

MR. SQUIRES: I just happened to stop in.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Actually, we're glad you did,
because we want to get some input from the executives.

MR. SQUIRES: I am Dick Squires, Atlantic County
Executive, 1333 Atlantic Avenue, Atlantic Cify. As far as veto
power is concerned, until about six months ago we did have veto
power over the minutes of the Utilities-Authdrity, as well as
the Improvement Authority. There was a court case lost by, I
believe, Bergen County, and it has affected all the county
authoritiés since that date, except in Atlantic County we still
have veto power over the Atlantic County Transportation
Authority. That case was never appealed to a higher court, and
the determination at that point by Bergen County -—- I believe
it was Bergen —— was not to pursue it. However, we did have a
lot more control over the bonding mechanisms, as well as those
actions of the authority, and we certainly did, in many cases,
come close to vetoing certain items in the minutes. It is not
necessarily a day-to—-day threat, but it is a tool you do have
for those purposes of things that get funning out of hand.

We are very happy —— at least I feel happy —— with the
selection of people I have been putting on the authorities,
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especially by attrition, in many cases by removing those who
seemed to have lost’ their agendas and really-came:out .as. being
less of the.overall.picture. They-seemed to come out with just
one ‘view; they didn't seem to take the full view. I-think it
is ‘very important to-get people from all walks of 1life, from
both political parties. I think, if anything, the regulations
are pretty well set.

One particular authority that was fashioned in recent
years with its membership was the Atlantic County
Transportation Authority, when it was created in 1981. It
dictates the number of people from one political party. It
dictates how many and how often, and also gives annual
membership to a county representative on the Transportation
Authority. There is something to be said about that.

I do know the authorities have had a lot of their own
ways over the years. Maybe in the times when there were issues
that they didn't have to address for a period of time, but
could  study, they certainly had plenty of time to do it. But
‘the studying time and the actual breaking of ground and
implementation are almost -imminent in a lot of cases, and I
think there has to be some tightening of those regqulations.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: On» question on the terms of
o: ice: Do you feel the five-y r term is right? We have
looked at possibly three-year te:ms, and even the memberships
of the boards. Right now, the law actually allows you to go to
nine, with two alternates. Bergen has eliminated the
alternates. .

MR. SQUIRES: I think the authorities should all have
the same terms. They do not have them at the present time.
The Utilities Authority, I believe, is five; the Transportation
Authority is more apt to-be three. In other authorities, it is
three or four. I think they should all be combined into one
particular term. ’
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B I also think there is another thing to be éaid, and I
was “just talking about.it earlier today.: Whenever: you: have a
chairman, 'and that is a situation we 'run into, ~you can have a
very successful chairman of any board:or :any .cemmittee or any
authority. I am referring to those people who are selected
normally by their peers to be the chairman. There should be
rules and regqulations on rotation. The rotation should take
place in part of the legislation, either two or three years,
subject to the entire body voting to waive it.

We have personalities that seem to erupt when they are
asked to move on by their own colleagues. For example, this
Committee here-— This is an example of a group that could be
working for the same purposes day in and day out, but over a
period of two or three years, you kind of feel as though, "If I
am going to sit here, why don't we rotate the membership."
What occurs 1is, when someone says to the chairman, "Well, we
are going to rotate it," they all take it as a negative, like
they have done something wrong, or you have decided to take
them on. I see so much of this being a personality problem,
that it really affects the operations of the authorities, as
well as any other board. I would like to see the chairman
addressed, and then if the body wants to vote as a body not to
change the reelection of that chairman -- by that I mean waive
the right not to have an automatic rotation -- that is
something else. But we find that to be one of the biggest
stumbling blocks. |

Now, to go back to the act of legislation, they spell
out that the appointee 'is the appointed chairman, and that is
something to consider also, sort of 1like the 1legislative
process. Basically that was, shall we say, off the cuff, but
it was something I just thought about in recent hours.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: That's great. We will absolutély
take that into consideration. I was part of the Bergen County
Utility Authority when it happened. That was a new form of
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government in Bergen County that had taken effect in April.
What happened :was, ~the Authority was being +teold by the new
charter. that :this-was writtem -in,- that the county executive had
veto power.::-It was ‘a turf battle, -plain and simple.---But, it
should be noted that-the  Bergen: County:Utility Authority :was.
not party-- They did not bring the suit. The labor unions at
the Authority brought the suit against the county executive.
That is where the suit actually came from. I believe that at
one point we were just kind of sitting there waiting for the
decision. BCUA did not wvote to go against the county
executive's power to veto the minutes.

MR. SQUIRES: See, there are only five counties that
have the charter form and county executive in the State of New
Jersey, so every time there is an issue, there 1is concern
amongst those five counties as to what happens, or what will be
the procedures from that day on. It's really something that
should be addressed, so it is not handled by individual
counties fighting it out in a courtroom at the expense of the
taxpayers. It would be better if it were regulated. -

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I tend to agree with you. I
think they do need accountability. I believe in the shorter
term also, because after five years—--

MR. SQUIRES: I think you ought to standardize it,
because I think a lot of people-- The attendance, also, should
be in there. There should be some attendance action. For
example, 12 meetings a year might be the standard amount of
meetings, and if you have members missing four or more, they
should automatically have to face up to some kind of a
reprimand, or else replacement. OKkay?

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Thank you very much.

MR. SQUIRES: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Again, we appreciate your
hospitality.
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Gentlemen, we're sorry we interrupted your testimony,
but I ~know the County Executive .did. have another: appointment,
SO~—— - = TomT e - T . Shov T e

-2 also want: ta- acknowledge 'that  the:‘Association of
Counties . is:.represented today. - We have Dan Douglass with us.
He is monitoring the hearing, and we hope to ask him if he has
any testimony 1later on in the hearing. Dan, thank you for
coming.

Gentlemen, please continue.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: I am trying to pick up the trend.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yeah, it's--

_ MR. HUBSCHMAN: When you spoke about the encumbrance
system before-- We talked about—-

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: We were talking about asset
inventory encumbrance, yeah.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: We ought to recognize the differences
between the governmental accounting and the accounting for the
authorities. There is a significant difference. That 1is
really the point that I have been trying to get across. I
think that with the authorities, what you had said about"
accountability, that is the key to all government. It can be
exercised without the stringent controls that are almost
natural, that have been derived for our governmental type
units. You don't have to put the emphasis on the budget, but
you would have to place the emphasis upon the actual results.
They ought to have to submit a budget that says, "This is the
plan," but that budget should not be as binding as what it is
for governmental units. They ought to be held more accountable
for the actual results, because of the fact that we have
deemphasized the budget.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Jack, do you wish to ask a
question? .
ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: You said that the budget
should not be as binding?
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MR. HUBSCHMAN: Yes, sir.
- ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: May I:-ask why?-- o : :
MR. ‘HUBSCHMAN: Because when we do that, it really

restricts - the . daily aoperations. : If 'these ~were: .competitive
companies, it would be-— Or, if governmental -units- were in a
competitive world, it would be impossible for them to
function. It is very time-consuming. It is a very laborious

procedure, but it is necessary to protect the public interest.

I think you <can derive .the same benefit Dby
accountability with authorities, but accountability after the
fact, not saying they don't have a budget. Th=” should have to
submit a plan. I would even suggest recommendations to that
plan, an extension from what we presently have today. The
present budget requirements are an accounting for operating
revenues. That is supported by a capital budget. I would say
that if they had to submit a budget, or a plan -- a financial
plan -- based upon the actual operations -- because there is a
difference between an operating statement and the budget that
they prepare today-— The State 1is concerned. I think the
' reason we have the existing budget4¥ "I think it would be fair
to project and tell you that someone looked at this, and said,
"Look, we don't want to get into a situation back in the '30s
-— the Depression." We want to say, or make sure that we have
a sufficient amount of cash for them to address all their
needs, even though the needs might not be an element of the
operation statement.

Essentially, it is a good procedure that is in effect,
if it were appreciated. I think that is really-- A key is the
education of the people out there, why it is the way it is.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Do you have any veto power over
their budget? 1Is it just submitted for--

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Well, we have very-— The law sets
very limited powers. They have to submit the budget for
approval 60 days prior, in the case of an authority, to the end
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of their fiscal year. The Division then has 45 days in which
to review-and certify the budget. -As long-as:the revenues are
reasonable; then -they are acceptable. With the appropriations,
the law ~specifies that the ~Director cannet -:substitute his
judgment -of ' what:ithe: appropriations: are-to~ be,::the real key
being that it has to at least be in balance -- the proposed
appropriations or expenditures -- and they have to at least
equal revenues. It has to be a balanced budget.

So, you really don't have a tremendous amount of power
to exercise. I don't think that someone sitting in Trenton can -
turn around and second gueés what the revenues ought to be.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: We're just going over what the
SCI recommended. They are basically saying that you should
have the same power over authorities as you dob over

municipalities.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: We do have, essentially. When you get
into the municipalities—-— I mentioned something earlier. When.
we are addressing the authorities, there is also a clause that
immediately starts off on page 1, and éays, "There are no
‘penalties for overexpending or expending the amount of the
appropriation.” So that sort of says, "Well, what do we have

the budget for?" Then you have to come back and say, "Why do
you have an appropriation? What does an appropriation
represent?" v

I'm saying that in that sense, I don't think‘you want
an appropriation to be binding, the way you do with a 1local
unit. .
ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Let me give you a good example to
bring it to the fore. Right now, the Bergen County Utilities
" Authority is going out-of-state on their garbage. They have
contracts with certain people for out-of-state dumping,
wherever it may be. They are now collecting $98 a ton, and
they are spending $105 a ton on garbage to go out-of-state.
The estimate is that by the end of the year, they will be $3
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million in the red. You Kknow, you couldn't. do that as a
municipality.: :¥ou :woukd~have to amend ‘y:ur budget.  You would
have. to -do -all - of  these:.things; and you. would .. have.  to
appropriate.:  TFhat;, to-me, is & situation-‘that is a very bad
example of  accountability. It is probably one of the worst
examples. They will have a $2 million or $3 million deficit
because of this, and they don't even tell us what they are
going to do.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Well, if we had qualified people, as
we were talking about, on the board of the Authority,
presumably they- would require financial statements being
submitted to them each month, certainly on a quarterly basis.
When I 1look at something 1like the Bergen County Utilities
Authority, you would want it at least every month —- a complete
set of financial statements, I would imagine.

When someone has delivered that information to you,
that they are going to incur this loss, you immediately begin
laying the plans as to how you are going to address that --
which may be a change in rate -- and immediately start
addressing whatever the procedure is that you'have‘to follow to -
effect that change in rate, so that you do not work yourself

into a deficit position. That 1is as éffective as saying,
"Let's change the budget," which is what happens now under a
governmental type situation. We will pass an emergency

appropriation, and we will defer that charge until next year
and raise it by taxes.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: But, through you. We need the
permission through you.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: They do when it exceeds 3-1/2%, but if
it is within that 3-1/2% they do not have to have the approval.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Well, that's true. But, the
smaller the bkudget-- That 3-1/2% doesn't-— Depending on the
size ~f the municipality, that 3-1/2% doesn't represent -- like
a ga ge truck. Do you know what I'm saying?
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MR. HUBSCHMAN: That's true. What would someone in
the: Division. say?.. "Well, here is-a:'situation.: -We are faced
with it, and now we have to approve it.":: The taxpayer is still
going: to bear theziload:: . - . -2if oo s sZ= o |
- ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I am not .a_fan of -authorities. I
speak personally, not as a member of the Committee. I think
they should have a tighter budget. I think if they are going
to prepare a fiscal statement, they should have enough of a
track record to put together a budget that 1is reasonable for
the oncoming year. I don't think that is too much to expect.
And then, the emergencies and/or contingencies that in normal,
daily life come out, if they represent a percentage of the
total bottom 1line of the authority,  they should have to go
through you. They should not be able to go out and have an
indebtedness of -- an astronomical indebtedness to the size of
the authority on their own. I don't think that I--

MR. HUBSCHMAN: What I would anticipate as being much
more effective, from the Division's point of view—-

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Well, that's what I'm—-

, ‘MR. HUBSCHMAN: --would be, not a budget;.‘but‘ the
calling into account. We may want to come out with some
interim financial statements, as well as the audit report. We
may want to put more emphasis wupon the audit report, the
timeliness of the report, what it means, and how important it
is, and then sit back and analyze the situation, and say, "Wait
a minute, fellows, you have a problem," 1if fhey do have a
problem. "We are going to call you in, sit down, and we want
to find out what your plans are to address that problem."

Now, if we had that type of staffing and that type of
capability, then I don't see what the significance of the
budget is. I think the main thing, coming back, is the
accountability. People have to be held accountable. If I am
not accountable to the Director, after how I perform, who knows
where we may be? Every individual is held accountable in one
respect or another.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Devil's advocate, and that's
all. - I'm nat sure that I would like.to see the bureaueracy :the
bottom-1line_ financial adviser.. I.. take it that-is-really what
you would be. When you went over that financial document, you
would be -becoming & financial adviser, more .or..less, to that
authority, and perhaps not have that hands-on that we discussed
before. Because of the 218, I think it would be very, very
difficult, if not impossible, to put yourself in that chair,
rather than have a financial document prepared by them, and
then reviewed by you. I am not sure which of those would be
better.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: I don't disagree with you for one
second on that. That is not what we are seeking. I know the
way I addressed it, it may have come across that way. I am
thinking more as we discussed it. What happens within a
corporation? You have your chief executive and the officers
who run it, and you have your board of directors. Having spent
20 years in private industry, you are accountable to the board
of directors every month. I think that if the commissioners of
the authorities were set up in that position-and knew what. they
were looking for-- If you had what I believe was mentioned
earlier in the way of qualified personnel, who could bring some
expertise into the authority, and could sit back and actually
manage the authority the way those commissioners should be
behaving, 1like the board of directors, you would have the
accountability there. Then, if it slips through them and gets
down to Trenton and a pattern is discerned, Trenton then may
want to say, "Hey, wait a minute."

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: That's fine, yeah. That sounds
reasonable.

You brought up penalties. What would be recommended?

MR. HUBSCHMAN : I don't  have any specific
recommendations.
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MR. KENNEDY: I understand that .the DCA regulations
carry ‘apenalty 1if- they are mnot observed: -—-+''-a statutory
penalty. . .There . .is'.a. general statutory section saying that if
the requlations 0f the Department of Community -Affairsare not
observed, a certain penalty will attach.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: 1In 52, if I may, Mr. Kennedy—-

MR. KENNEDY: Title 52--

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Okay, 52:27-bb, and I think it goes
back to section 53 and 54. This addresses that there is a
$1000 fine and possibly one year in jail. I think, in essence,
what it says 1is, for failure to follow the directive of the
Director, in the one section, and then what has been proscribed
by the Local Finance Board, in the other section. I have had
discussions since joining the Bureau with the Deputy Attorney
General, and mentioned that while that is a law, that is not
something that can be initiated or called wupon by the
Division. My understanding from the -DAG was that the county
prosecutor has to initiate this action. ‘

_ MR. KENNEDY: So, this bears no—- This has no effect
" on your regulation of aythorities? e

MR. HUBSCHMAN: From a practical point of view, it is
of little consequence. ‘

MR. KENNEDY: Would you rather see penalty provisions
put into the law directly?

~ MR. HUBSCHMAN: I would hate to make that decision. I
would like to respond, though, on the basis that it is not
something to be dealt with lightly. However, if you are going
to have accountability, and if someone does not perform, and in
some instances almost refuses to perform, then what happens?
All too frequently, I think what does occur, if it hasn't been
legislated that it is an automatic penalty, is that people are
reluctant to impose the penalty.

MR. KENNEDY: Have you ever sent a budget back to an
authority for corrections?
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MR. HUBSCHMAN: Oh, yes. I would guess out of-- We
went .through: a budget season. of processing close to 400 budgets
between November, .December, and January. I would guess that of
that -portion..that: was- represented by.fire.distnicts,“oneathird
to. one-half was <conditionally qualified. I would guess a
lesser percentage with the authorities, maybe 25%, were
conditionally qualified, and probably a couple of dozen budgets
submitted were refused. I think we have a large educational
program on our hands.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: . Mr. Chairman?

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yes?

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Is there any way we could
have a recommendation from you on the mechanics of setting up
such an educational program? Would it be through DCA? Who
would we get as the professionals, should we be able to start
that type of a program?

MR. HUBSCHMAN: That .is quite a coincidence -- the
answer. Bearing in mind that I have been with the Bureau for
seven months, one of the first things I suggested was -- had
time permitted,. and as soon as time permits =- to review the
regulations and the procedures currently in effect. This is a
time-consuming type of thing. I think it best belongs with the
Division, because they are working with it and they know the
problems we have now experienced. We have seen firsthand what
the problems are. I have probably been in 40 of the largest
municipalities in this State. I have been deeply involved with
a half a dozen of them. I know, also, that the municipalities
have a tendency to look to Trenton-- It is sort of almost a
"They are the enemy" type of thing.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Only the larger ones.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: I don't think we want to come across
that. "That is a hard thing to--

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: The srall guys don't want no
part of Trenton?
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MR. HUBSCHMAN: I see the same thing with the
authorities:’: I ‘think we .want to .get across to-.them, "Look, we
are .not here--trying- te beat you over the head. We are here to
help."._ Sometimes. that is:very:difficult; -and I :think they have
to be shown. That has not always been their experience.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Excuse me, I am going to be
a little facetious. Ever since we lost the Herrick funds --
90% —— and I know you wouldn't be familiar with that -- to
build roads, we get a 50/50 match, and a 75/25 match. We can't
even afford it, so we stay away from it. I'm talking about the
smaller municipalities.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Yeah.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Is there anything else? (no
response) There is just one thing I would like to leave you
with: The SCI did request that the Department -- the Division,
rather —— work on a code of ethics for us, if that is within
your purview, or we can have the Committee Aide draw that, if
you would like, with some of your input.

MR. VALENTI: I think our Director would probably want
to comment on that. o ' | : -

MR. HUBSCHMAN: The Director would probably want to
make that decision. '

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Okay.

MR. VALENTI: On the training -- not a step backwards,
but-- We have done a lot-- Actually, we are not trainers. We
have guest lecfured; we have prepared material. But we have
dealt a lot through Rutgers University.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yeah, I was going to say that. I
wouldn't expect you people to do that.

MR. VALENTI: They do all the assigning. They use a
county building like this, and things like that.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: No, Rutgers has done very well on
the zoning and planning courses they have run.
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MR. VALENTI: And, through them, there are three
certification Pprograms,— two- on-line already. - The municipal
clerks.. have: to . be: certified now for: reappointmeant. . The: ‘tax
collectors-have -hadthat:--requirement, .and the finance officers'
bill 1is pending. So, slowly these various - functional areas
have come on board through Rutgers, with a State-certified exam.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Financial officers also, no?

MR. VALENTI: It's pending.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Certified municipal financial officers.

MR. VALENTI: Right. _

MR. HUBSCHMAN: That was another point of discussion
with the Director, as to the possibili-7 of incorporating
certain courses that specifically address aiuthorities.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: All right. Any comments you
might have on membership composition, terms of members, or
anything like that would be appreciated. Financial disclosure
I think that we, as legislators, have to submit, and you also.

MR. VALENTI: We, as employees have to submit.

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I think it should filter down to
the local boards. | o

Let's see-— We want to really get into some of the
recommendations you may make in legislation to tighten up the
budget and bidding law, and extend it where it is not extended
to these authorities, to make sure they are complying.

-~ The other thing 'is, the SCI recommended that the
bonding be 1looked into, and something be drafted to give us
control over that. I, myself, know that the numbers that come
down on, Jjust the part of it that pertains to the bonding .
attorney—-— There are so many FAs and so many of these and
those. If you had some bid procedure that you could follow. I
saw one bonding attorney get a $175,000 fee for doing nothing
-- absolutely nothing. I use that "nothing" liberally. Maybe
he wrote two or three-letters, and that was it. To me, it is
just a terrible waste of taxpayers' and ratepayers' money.
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MR. VALENTI: Mr. Chairman, 3just on that point,
whenever there is a question about bidding -- formal bidding —-
my thought has always been, "When it doubt, bid it out." But
one thing with formal competitive bidding, you have to be
careful in some areas and also take a step back. When you are
dealing with professional services, and this is not really a
professional service-- I mean, if you have an attorney doing
this, then they can hire them under the Professional Service
clause, which is a total exemption. But on certain things, the
law says "lowest responsible price."

Now, everybody remembers the lowest part, because that
is kind of easy. The hardest part is the responsible part.
You don't want to get yourself caught up in a competitive bid
situation for such services, where you are taking the low
price, and you end up paying more in the end because the
service is not responsible. So, competitive bidding only works
if you have the right people in place. Maybe what we are
talking about here-- I think the 1law does state, for bond
proceedings, something about bids. They talk a_bout the word
"bids" ‘in there, and right away people think of corﬁpetitive
bids. You might be talking about something here that is along
the competitive negotiations or competitive theme, that is
aboveboard open. There is a process of inviting in proposals,
but that there be a process for evaluating those proposals,
where you take into consideration price and other factors. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I think DCA could easily help on
that by prequalifying. If you prequalify a bonding company,
for example, and are able to certify them, say, "You can
negotiate with these people," at least they would be on your
list and they are qualified to do it, and you've gotten it,
almost 1like putting out your computer run of all of the
compcaents you are bidding anyway. I think if you did that, or
something to that effect, and said, "Okay, we can work with
these 10 companies--" There a,r;g\certain companies that can't
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handle a $500 million bond issue, or a $600 million bond issue,
but-:there .are. probably five or'six that can. -If wé opened it
ta those- five. or ~six, -rather- than:dedling. with one.preferred
person; ' you ~know,. then we:-tare’ going::to::get better =pricing:
"When in doubt, bid it out." I agree. There is nothing that
could be better said. But, when you are talking 1-1/2% and
1-3/4% for the bonding company on $600 million, that could come
down, probably, to 3/4% or 1/2%. There is a lot of money being
made unjustly, just because someone 1is preferred, rather than
having it bid. That is the hairy area. That is the area --
the gray area -- where the .ofessional services kind of, you
know, overlap. I still thir... we can bid it and do much, much
better. _

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Then, after the issue has been out for
three, four, or five years, somebody sayé, "Well, let's
refinance it." -

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Absolutely. We did three of
those in the 1last three years. I guess one of the various
parties needed the money, or whatever -- their contributions.
But, unfortunately, that does happen. Fortunately, they did
get a better rate and could justify it with the interest rate
having goné down. There is a lot of money out there, and we
have to have more accountability and responsibility. We are
going to pretty much end your testimony on the same thing that
we started it with.

' ' If there is any help you can give us to show us where
we can tighten up the loopholes-- We have found many, many
loopholes since we have been looking at the issue. If there is
anything you can do, please work with Walter or myself or any
members of the Committee.

’ MR. HUBSCHMAN: May I ask, what is your time frame?

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: We are hoping to have one more
hearing in Trenton prior to the summer break, and then probably
over the summer start looking at the legislation and putting it

—

~..

in.
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MR. HUBSCHMAN: So there might be a few months to

formulate something-like-this?- -i:x -+ . Tt e

- -ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: - Yeah: ~We:would love: . to have it
in before. the:summer “break; but I:don't:think that is going to
be possible. "I think we are going to have some timing problems
with the next hearing.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: May I?

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yes, please.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: We have had an
unconscionable amount of legislation that has to correct all
types of bonding, either through advertising or some foolish
mistake along through the process on the accountability side.
That professional who put that together-—- I think it was the
attorneys -- the attorneys setting the procedure for the
advertising. It Jjust seems that through the 1legislative
process —— and I have only been there six years; I am serving
my fourth term now, and I have had to put in three myself --
okay? —-- for school bond 1issues and others—- The
accountability to that attorney-— I think if we would take a
few moré minutes toApfoéfread it and then let it go, it would
save us all an awful lot of money. It seems the money is made
so easily. That accountability, and how we can possibly-- I
am trying to wrestle with it. If there is any advice at all
that you could give us, I think it would help, and would save
the taxpayers a tremendous émount of money.

We just let some out, one of these committees, on it
the other——

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yeah.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: We'll bear that in mind, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Thank you.

MR. HUBSCHMAN: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Thanks. Very good.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Any other questions?  (no
response) Barry Skokowski has always been very helpful, and
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his office has always been very professional. We appreciate
your input.

Again, is there anyone else at this time? Dan, would
you like to say a few words from the Association of Counties'
perspective? Inspector Dan Douglass.

DANIEL DOUGLASS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am
Dan Douglass, from the New Jersey Association of Counties. I
am their Legislative Representative.

Since you have started these hearings, we have been
discussing amongst ourselves, the authorities. If any
particular 1legislation comes out of th: :e hearings, we will
certainly view it and probably take a position on it.

But, the general theme thus far has been that the
authorities should generally be left to the discretion of the
counties. The membership of the authorities should be the
prerogative of the governing bodies; that ultimately the
authorities are responsible to the elected officials which
established them, and thus the elected ©officials are
responsible to the voters. So there is a check and balance
~along those lines. S ' |

The other theme, of course, was that the State should
probably leave the counties to do what they do best. We should
be able to direct our resources to those items which we perform
well, and not be concerned as much with court costs or
maintenance of patients, and things like that -- the half a
billion dollars worth of State mandates that are forced upon
the counties. We would rather be able to direct our resources
to sewerage authorities or other items of 1local infrastructure
needs, than be forced to pay for something we have no control
over. v '

So, there is a reluctance amongst the counties to give
up control of something they know something about and generally
perform well. Where authorities are not performing well, we
feel the elective process is the appropriate check and balance
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on the counties. If freeholders establish an authority which
is -running out of control, then the freeholders should,
perhaps, be removed. from office, or be subject to the.voters'

opinidha= 0 o s Tmee s s e e s e T

That is generally what has <come out of our
discussions. As I said, any specific proposals, we will give
full consideration, and perhaps give you an opportunity to
present your proposals to our Legislative Committee and to our
Board of Directors, to let them hear firsthand what your
proposals might be. |

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Dan, as the County Executive said
earlier, and the county executive in my county said -- Bergen
County -- all too often, with a five-year term, these people
outlast the appointing authorities. They will span over the
county executive four-year term or the freeholder three-year
term. That is the thing, you can't replace those individuals
on that board. What they are looking for-- They also can't
take the responsibility for previous boards, so the tone I am
hearing from the appointing authorities 1is, perhaps there
should be a shorter term, standardized with all authorities,
make it a three-year term. |

Also, there should be qualifications. If we lay down
qualifications for having this office, and say it must be a
business person with a business degree, or an attorney, or a
member of the financial community--— If you lay these down,
then there is no problem with the appointing authority saying,
"Well, we have to do this. We can't just pick Joe's cousin, or
so and so's brother." Once we lay it down, I think we will
have answered a problem they have. ) _

The other thing is, the Executive also said no more
than two years consecutive without it, you know, being approved
by the authority -- for a chairman. These are some of the
things that he 1is concerned about. He can't replace a
chairman. He brought these things up. So, there are some

49



differences with what you're saying. I think there is a
concern with the membership; a' -concern for acceuntability.
It's nat there. - .o oo oo L

. I sat on one of those authorities, and there was
absolutely no accountability. You were going to be around for
five years, and the county executive is going to be gone in
four; the freeholders are gone in three.

MR. DOUGLASS: I think there 1is, amongst the counties,
some agreement, perhaps, for shorter terms; that it does
increase the accountability of the governing body if they can
replace them within their term. There perhaps should be some
overlap to avoid completely partisan replacing of members, but
in general shorter terms might be something that we would be
agreeable to.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Don't get us wrong. We have no
intention of ever taking the appointed power away from the
counties. That is not the intent of this board. What we are
‘trying to do 1is to have them strengthen their position in
appointing the proper people, and having them for terms that
are reasonable, rather than for five years.. I think if you go
back to the last legislation that created nine-member utility
authorities with two alternate members, it was done purely --
purely —-- for political purposes. One party was leaving power
in that particular major authority, and another party was
coming in. They wanted to expand the membership of the party
leaving power, and put the alternates on also to have their
people in control. "It was purely political. We have to
understand why that was done. I know because it happened to my
county.

MR. DOUGLASS: But nothing at all pre§enté a governing
body from appointing qualified people. It doesn't necessarily
have to be in law that it should be an engineer or someone with
an accounting background.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Wel the suggestion is that at
least - one==_ You- should:- have f:i .ancial,. Yegal, . and -probably
management:-.out. of maybe seven members or nine members. You
should have-: someone who .-has ~some ' qualifications : and
experience. That is all they are looking for.

What we would like to do is have you work with us, to
give us input into the membership question, the bidding
question. You people are under a different law, obviously, in
the counties, than the authorities are. I would think the
counties would want to get the authorities under the same
bidding and budget requirements. We have heard that they are
not part of that system.

MR. DOUGLASS: What we are doing as part of our
ongoing internal discussions -- and you might note that the
Senate County and Municipal Government Committee is starting to
hold hearings on a related subject, in terms of bidding for
various levels of government-- We are going to be contacting
the county purchasing officers to see what recommendations they
might have. They would have more of an expertise than perhaps
the freeholders or the county executives, in terms of dealing
‘with it on a day-to-day basis.

So, we are opening the door both ways to be willing to
help you and to see if we can get input from our local county
officials. _

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: That's great. Part of our
discussion is the purchasing and the bidding. Another thing we
are interested in is the Sunshine Law. One of the big things
that came out in the Independent Authorities was violation of
the Sunshine Law. I know from my experience, many times I had
to remind the body that I sat on that we were 1in total
violation of the Sunshine Law. To strengthen that, we should
be making them more aware of it. '

So, anything we can do to work together-- I don't
want to put legislation out that the Association is going to
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oppose. I think we should be working together on somethihg
that you will support, where you wi .l go out-and say, "This is
good legislation. " It's good .government." R ‘
== - MR. DOUGLASS:: We will--be happy to work with you.
Thank you for asking us here today.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Thank you. We will see you in
Trenton, hopefully.

MR. DOUGLASS: Certainly.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Just one quick thing. You
might send some recommendations down on the Sunshine Law, what
your feeling 1is on that, and how that could be made a
respectable law that would really help, rather than be-- In my
opinion, it 1is way overrated. I am not sure it is doing the
job it is supposed to do.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: I was hoping the League of Women
Voters would be here to give us their statement. Let me just

.read 1it; it says: ‘"Local Financing Authorities: In addition
to interstate and statewide authorities, there are over 200
local authorities. Their purposes include: sewerage,
‘utilities, parking, housing, -and incineration. Since January -

1, 1984, 1local financing authorities have been subject to
regulation by DCA. This legislation which provides the
regulation strengthens the existing system of State oversight
of local financial operations and debt, by providing for State
supervision of independent 1local authorities and special tax
districts, financial operations and debt.

"Financial control responsibilities over local
authorities and special districts are assigned to the Local
Finance Board and the Director. The Local Finance Board
exercises approval power over the creation of new authorities
and special districts, as well as approval power over the
dissolution of such authorities and districts.

"The Local Finance Board also reviews, conducts public
hearir 5, and 1issues findings and recommendations on any
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proposed project financing of an authority or a district, and
on;any:ﬁinancing~agreementubetween~thealbcal govermment and the
authority .-or-_ . special . district. ...The Local Finance Board
prescribes - minimum...audit requirements . .to._be . followed . .by
authorities and special districts in the conduct of their
annual audits. The Director reviews and approves annual
budgets of authorities and special districts."

I probably should have read that before DCA came on,
because that-is a total description of what they are doing.

"Legislation applies to all autonomous public bodies
created by counties and municipalities which are empowered to
issue bonds, impose facility or service charges, or levy taxes

on a district. This encumbers most autonomous local
authorities -- sewerage, water, parking, etc. -—- and special
tax districts -- fire, etc. Authorities which are subject to

differing State or Federal restrictions are exempt to the
extent of the difference.

"As of December 31, 1985, there were 218 1locally
created authorities with a capital debt of $4 116 922 000,
reflectlng outstanding bonds and also mortgages

The questions that the League will be asking in their
hearings around the State -- and some of you legislators should
note these and get answers to them-—— I will give you the
questions. It 1is always better when you have the questiohs in
advance.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: - Yeah, could we have those?
Thanks, John. Very good. A good Chairman; a good Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: "Do you have any concerns about
the current state of authorities and commissions?" I think we
all have. ' -

"Do you think that most authorities serve the same
purpose for which they were created? Explain.

"In what type of case 1is the authority structure
preferred to direct governmental control?
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"What government requirements exist now to regulate
authorities?: .y zgooominnl oo = T A
- .. "Would cgreater -‘government regqulation of -authorities
inhibit:their ability to act efficiently? . -

"What oversight -~ does - government now have over
authorities? How is oversight working?

"Can and does the Governor's office monitor

authorities efficiently -- and the comptroller?
"What disclosure requirements are there for
authorities?

"Is there enough oversight of finances, management
practices, personnel policies, staff, and appointed directors?

"Is ..ere enough accountability built into the system?

"Are authorities being used to circumvent the voters
on bond issues? Keep taxes down.

"Is the overall size of an authority debt a problem?
Please explain.

“Do you think that some authorities are impeded by
their restrictive covenants? Do the covenants impede public or
State policy? Explain. ' ’ - .

"What other questions should the League of Women
Voters be asking in the course of our investigation of
authorities?"

We will bring this upstairs and get copies for the
Committee. Perhaps the Leagque will come to our hearing in
Trenton and pose the questions themselves. We should have some
answers.

If there is no one else who would like to testify at
this time--

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: I move we adjourn.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Is the motion seconded?

ASSEMBLYMAN HUDAK: Yeah. Can we get a copy of that
other statement? - '
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: Yes. What I am going to do is--
When  we :adjourn, Assemblyman Kline has invited us to his
legislative office -upstairs——- DL AT T e

:ASSEMBLYMAN KEINE::' On ‘the third floor.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: = --on -the - third floor . for
sandwiches. So, we will go up and make copies up there.

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: That's some hospitality.
You can't beat that southern hospitality.

ASSEMBLYMAN ROONEY: South Jersey. I want to thank
everyone for coming today. We had hoped that there would be
some more, but perhaps at the next hearing in Trenton we will
get some additional information. As I said, it is an ongoing
study. Right now, we have :ome pretty good input as to what
the problems are, and we will be looking to correct those very
shortly.

Thank you very much.

' (HEARING CONCLUDED) =
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Public Hearing at Bergen County Community College

The State Commission of Inve;tigation conducted an
investigation of such authorities which concluded with a public
hearing in  July, 1982, and a subsequent report, with
recommendations, to the  Governor and the Legislature." Atj£hat
time several bills were pending in the Legislature to empower the
State to control project finéncing by authorities and to monitor
their internal financing conduct. Due in part to the Commission's
. recommendations for enactment of this critically important reform
legislation, the proposal became law within a yea;. However, the
Commission proposed other reforms which were overlooked but which
warrant enactment.

The notice of this hearing indicated that much concern still
exists about the qualificatioﬁs and conduct of authority members.
The Commission's recommendations in 1982 included a number that
targeted the political bias, cronyism and deplorable lack of

technical knowledge among authority members regarding the complex
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financial and operational problems of their facilities.

In order

to assure that basic decisions of these authorities were founded

on both integrity and expertise, the Commission urged then -- and

reiterates here -- several proposals that should be implemented.

-

These include:

Code of Ethics

A model Code of Ethics should be compiled by the State
Division of Locai Government Services to which all
authority members and officers ‘must subscribe under
oath, with provisions for hearings of alleged violations
and penalties for noncompliance, including £fines,

suspensions and dismissals.

Technical and Professional Training

Provision should be made by the Division for technical
assistance and training of appropriate authority members
and administrative and operational staff executives in
connection with new statutory requireménts for uniform
accounting and financial reporting, as well as with

related existing laws such as the Local Public Contracts

Act.

Membership Composition

The Commission recommends that any authority's
membership be required to include an accredited engineer

and at least one other member who is 1) a lawyer with an
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acknowledged professional backéround in governmental,
corééréte or bond 1law, or 2) a fully qualified
represéntative of the financial community, or 3) an
individual with proven academic credentials and
experience-in business administration. Most important,
no local or county governing body should appoint its own
members to an authority and no political party should

have a majority of more than one vote on such agencies.

Financial Disclosure

The Commission recommends that all authority members
submit personal financial disclosures designed to
prevent conflicts of interest at a time and in a form
prescribed by the Division and be subject to mandatory
fines of a substantial nature against both the affected

member and the authority itself for non-compliance.

Mandate Employment Qualifications

Minimal but nonetheless exacting qualifications should
be mandated by the Division for appointm nt of executive
directors or others with similar responsibilities for
overall administrative supervision of an authority
plant. A college education, with an emphasis on

business administration or engineering should be
necessary, as well as a specified amoung\\gf previous
working experience in sewerage and/or\ utility

operations. A proven career background with a facility
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should be acceptable as an alternative to the

requirement for a specialized educational background.

Prequalify Chemical Vendors

-

The Division should establish a list of pre-qualified

vendors of chemicals deemed essential for the adequate
operation of treatment and purification facilities. The
Division should establish training seminars for
authority purchasing agents to assist them in
determining the actual effectiveness of chemicals.

currently being marketed for waste water treadtment.

Almost six years ago, the Commission made the following
critique of the lack of qualifications for membership and the low.
standards of conduct that prevailed for most county and local
utility authorities: |

The Commission was appalled by public hearing testimony
that demonstrated the inferior quality ,of appointments
by certain local or county governmental entities to the
authorities these gntities created. The hearings
demonstrated that an appointive process based too often
on political connections rather than on merit generated
sorely inadequate upper-le&el policy guidance,
ineffective managerial controls and blind reliance -on
often incompetent staff. The testimony also confirmed

that the absence of any requirement for public
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accountability shielded misconduct that some authority
members participated in at worst or closed their eyes to

at best.

-

While there has been some improvement since then, the
Commission believes that its éritique remains applicable to many
authorities. Indeed, the agenda suggested by your committee's
hearing notice supports our concern. The Commission therefore
hopes that this hearing will generate renewed efforts to further
protect the public from misconduct by authorities by enacting more
rigid requirements then presently exist for the open, honest and

professionally intelligent operation of such entities.
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